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May 2022 70 Hampton Road
Rothesay, NB

) Canada E2L5L5

Mayor Grant and Rothesay Council:

T: 506-848-6600
F:506 8486677
Re: 2022 Annual Report

Rorhesay®rothesay.ca

www.rothesay.ca

It is my pleasure (o present the annual report of Rothesay for 2022. This
report has been prepared in accordance with the New Brunswick
regulation 2018 - 54 under the Local Governance Act. Attached to this
report are the audited financial statements showing that the Town
operated a small surplus in both the general and utility funds.

Across New Brunswick municipal reform changed the number of
municipalities and the boundarics of many. There were no changes to
the Rothesay boundary, but reform meant a significant focus on the
Fundy region and collaboration with other area municipalties.

The year saw a significant increase 1n resident:al development activity
focused on apartment buildings. Three projects were approved on
Hampton Road and others on Chapel and the corner of Gondola Point
and Clark Roads These projects generally targeted seniors as their
clientele, Low density projects in Sagamore Point and the Hillside South
Sccondary Plan arca were also initiated.

When the provincial three-year highway plan did not include resurfacing
of Rothesay Road, strong representations to the Minister of
Transportation and Infrastructure led by Mayor Grant and Deputy
Mayor Alexander resulted in a change in the pricrities {or provincially
designated highways in Rothesay and funding for a significant stretch of
this key part of the regional road network.

Late in the year a collective agreement was reached with CUPE Local
5369 for the Town's outside labourers establishing terms until 2025,

Staff have worked diigently to adjust to changes brought on by the
pandemic and | thank them for their perseverance during what must be
described as a challenging three years. | also express my appreciation
to you, Mayor Grant and the Council for supporting stafl and carcfully
considering the many decisions you have faced during 2022.

Explore our past / Explotez notre passé
Discover your future / Découvrez votre avenir

Crand Bay-Westfield « Quispamsis + Rothesay - St. Martins + Saint john



ROTHESAY
2022 ANNUAL REPORT

1. INTRODUCTION

On January 1, 2018, Regulation 2018 - 54 came into effect. The Province of New
Brunswick established the Annual Report Regulation - Local Governance Act to
provide information to property taxpayers regarding their local government.
Rothesay has published an annual report in the past, but this report differs in that
it is designed to be in conformance with this legislation. A copy of the new
regulation is found in the Appendices to this Report.

2, THE COMMUNITY

Land Acknowledgment

We would like to respectfully acknowledge that our town of Rothesay exists on the
traditional lands of the Wolastoqiyik /Maliseet and Mi'Kmag whose ancestors,
along with the Passamaquoddy / Peskotomuhkati Tribes / Nations signed Peace
and Friendship Treaties with the British Crown in the 1700s.

We respectfully acknowledge that the United Nations Declaration of the Rights of
Indigenous Peoples {UNDRIP) was adopted by the United Nations on September
13, 2007 and enshrined in law in Canada by Parliament on June 21, 2021 as Bill C-15.

We respectfully endorse the Calls to Action of the Truth and Reconciliation
Commission of 2015 as it applies to our Municipal Government of the town of
Rothesay.

History

Rothesay is a long-established residential commmunity in southern New Brunswick
and celebrated its 150th anniversary in 2010. In 1997, the Provincial Government
amalgamated a portion of the Local Service District of Wells with the Town of
Rothesay and the villages of Fairvale, Renforth and East Riverside-Kingshurst to
form the new town of Rothesay with a population of about 11,600.

The town motto, “Quinque luncta In Uno (Five United In One)", represents the
strength and unity of our municipality and the joining together of the five
founding communities. The Municipal Flag for Rothesay represents the first of its
kind in Canada. By permission of the New Brunswick government, the provincial
flag, adopted in 1965 on the authority of Queen Victoria's Warrant of 1868, occupies
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the topmost part (the hoist} of the municipal flag. The Ceoat of Arms occupies the
fly.

Rothesay's current population, based on the 2021 Statistics Canada Census, is
11,977, a small increase from the 2016 count. This population was distributed

amongst 4,875 households, 75% of which occupied single detached housing with
an average size of 2.4 persons.

Rothesay is part of the Fundy Regional Service District, which is composed of one
unincorporated Rural District and six area municipalities t centered on the mouth
of the St. John River.

3. GOVERNANCE

An eight-person Council with Dr. Nancy Grant as Mayor provides for the
governance of the Town. Council meeting attendance and monies Council
members received from the Town are set out in Appendices B & C. Public events
attended by Mayor Dr. Grant and Council members are set out in Appendix D.

COUNCIL MEMBERS

The Rothesay Council includes:
¢ Mayor Dr. Nancy Grant
e Deputy Mayor Dr. Matthew Alexander, Ph.D.

and Councillors:

¢ Tiffany Mackay French ¢ Helen Boyle
o Bill McGuire ¢ Peter ]. Lewis
¢ Dave Brown ¢ Don Shea

COUNCIL MEETINGS

Rothesay Council meetings are typically held the second Monday of the month at
7:00 p.m. in the Common Room, Rothesay Town Hall, 70 Hampton Road, Rothesay,
NB. Regular and special Council meetings are open to the public. Council agendas
and agenda packages are posted to the website prior to each meeting. Approved
Council minutes are available for review in the Clerk's office and also online:

www.rothesay.ca.

Closed session meetings are held in accordance with the Local Governance Act,
SNB 17, c. 18 {s. 68} when the subject matter relates generally to the following:
confidential and/or personal information protected by law; contract negotiations;
land disposition or acquisition; litigation or potential litigation and legal opinions
or advice; matters of security; information gathered by police; information that
could violate confidentiality from the federal or provincial government; and labour
and employment matters.



COVID-19 Pandemic declared 13 March 2020 (World Health Organization)

Meetings held by videoconference:
Meetings held in person:

January & February
March - December

Public Health restrictions (COVID-19) in New Brunswick were lifted by the province
on 14 March 2022.

Committees of Council {2022)

Personnel Committee
Finance Committee

Nominating Committee

EMQO Committee
Parks and Recreation Committee

Planning Advisory Committee

Works and Utilities Committee
Rothesay Heritage Preservation
Review Board

Rothesay Living Museum
Committee

Age Friendly Advisory Committee
Climate Change Adaptation
Committee

Mary Jane Banks is the Director of Administrative Services and Town Clerk.




4. ADMINISTRATION

vy Y . Pl The Rothesay Town office is open Monday

o - through Friday from 8 am to 430 pm, except

civic holidays. The office is closed from noon to

1 pm. The main telephone line (506-848-6600) is

answered 7/24 for service requests and urgent
matters.

s Town records are filed in a computerized
database with searching capacity in accordance with the guidelines of the
Municipal Records Authority. Rothesay has implemented a system to record
customer service requests and to track the nature of requests and the time
required to respond. There were 675 service requests responded to in 2022 with
the most frequent being related to general drainage issues, culverts, water meter
readings and lateral locates.

Rothesay has a workforce of both unionized and non-unionized employees.
Unionized employees at Rothesay are represented by the Canadian Union for
Public Employees (C.U.P.E). Local 5369,

Our 2022 human resource efforts related in large part to contract negotiations with
C.U.P.E. focused on reaching a fair and equitable agreement that would benefit
both the municipality and employees. Rothesay is pleased to report that we have
successfully concluded our contract negotiations. The new contract includes
several key provisions that will benefit Rothesay employees and help attract and
retain talent.

At the end of 2022, Rothesay had 46 permanent employees (including 18 members
of the bargaining unit). During 2022, 32 recruitments were carried out or were in
progress as of December 31 This included four positions vacant from departing
employees, two positions vacant due to retirement, and 26 to fill seasonal student
positions.

The upcoming year will focus on recruitment, retention, and succession planning
as we continue to plan for the transition of 30.4% of our workforce who are eligible
for retirement within the next 10 years. As Nationwide labour shortages continue
to impact recruitment efforts, retaining and developing employees will continue
to be a focus of HR initiatives for the near future.

In the coming year, Rothesay will continue to strive towards being an employer of
choice by offering a competitive compensation package, a safe and healthy work
environment, and meaningful and engaging work.
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5. PROTECTIVE SERVICES

A. FIRE

The Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. (KVFD) is a corporation jointly owned
with Quispamsis to provide fire suppression and fire prevention and education
services throughout the two Towns. Station 1 is located on Campbell Drive in
Rothesay and Station 2 is located on Hampton Road in Quispamsis Renovations
began on Station 2 in 2022 and are expected to be completed by summer 2023.

The Department provides assistance to Ambulance New Brunswick in responding
to many medical emergencies. In 2022, there were 538 calls for service in Rothesay,
which was up from 2021 where there were 454, Included in the 538 calls were 282
EMS incidents, and 65 motor vehicle incidents-collisions.

The Department consists of 40 firefighters, including 12 company officers, senior
firefighters, lieutenants and captains. The management team consists of one Fire
Chief and one Deputy Chief, two Division Chiefs, an Executive Assistant to the Chief
and a Finance Administrator. A Board with equal representation from each Council
and volunteer appointments from each Town governs the KVFD. Rothesay paid
$2.355M or 40.93% of the Department’s operating costs in 2022. Details about the
Fire Department are on its website:

http:/fkvfire.ca
The Fire Chief is Michael Boyle, BIS, ECFO

B. POLICE
The Kennebecasis Regional Police Force (KRPF), an organization jointly owned and (G
funded with Quispamsis, carries out policing in Rothesay. The Force has 44 officers
and employs seven civilian staff. In 2022, Rothesay had 2,180 calls for service.

Rothesay's share (40.05%) of the annual budget for policing was $3.035M in 2022.

Oversight of the KRPF is charged to a Board of Commissioners appointed by the
two Towns and one Commissioner appointed by the Provincial Minister of Public
Safety. More information regarding the nature and operations of the Regional
Police Force is on its website:

http:// www nebecasisregionalpolice.com
The Police Chief is Steve Gourdeau



C. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS
Operations at the Town returned to a level of normality as the Province lifted the
Covid-19 Public Health restrictions, on March 14, 2022, Later, that spring the Town
was also fortunate to be spared from the worst effects of the annual spring freshet
as the flooding season came and went without significant damage to property and
requirements for sand bagging and cleanup.

The efforts to establish a joint Emergency Measures Organization (EMO} with
Quispamsis took the first step through the appointment of the new Kennebecasis
Valley Fire Department (KVFD) Fire Chief as the director of KV EMO. The KVFD is
well suited and staffed to be the lead agency for emergency management in the
Kennebecasis Valley.

Moving towards a joint EMO model, the KV Fire Chief has created a steering
committee with representatives from both Towns and the mandate to establish
an emergency measures organization that represents both municipalities.

EMERGENCY
MEASURES
PLAN




6. FINANCE

The Town finished the 2022 fiscal year with a general fund surplus of $128,838 and
a surplus in the utility fund of $33,993. These will be brought into budgets in 2024.
During the year, the Town retired $1.3M of debt. No new debt was incurred during
2022 however debentures in the amount of $800,000 and $1 million are expected
in 2023 to finance utility and protective service projects respectively.

The Town's current net debt is approximately $728 per capita and debt service
costs are 4.41% of the annual budget supported by property taxes. The legislated
limit for debt service is 20% of a municipality's annual expenditures in its general
fund. The borrowing limits for utilities are larger and the Town is currently well
within provincial guidelines with utility debt service costs of 21.9%. That debt is
repaid through utility charges.

The total operating expenditures and debt service costs of the Town were $19.6M.
Rothesay paid approximately $155,000 in Provincial property tax in 2022 as well as
HST to the Province of approximately $550,000. The Provincial Government
transferred $130,972 which represents 16¢ of the $2.27 provincial tax rate paid by
non-residential property in the town.

The Town donated $30,725 to various groups and causes in 2022; none of these ere
for economic development purposes. A list of the donations is found in Appendix




A. Revenue

Revenue by source

Sale of services Other

Water and sewer 2% &%
fees
12%

Condiﬁonalh

9%

Property tax warrant
70%
Unconditional grant
1%

Property tax warrant  « Unconditional grant Conditional grants

Water and sewer fees . Sale of service$ Other

The total tax base of the municipality for the purposes of setting the tax rate was
$1.51SB. The tax rate for 2022 was $1.20 per hundred dollars of assessment.
Assessments are carried out by Service New Brunswick on behalf of all
municipalities in the province at a cost of slightly less than two cents per hundred
to the property owner and an equal amount paid by the Town. Six percent of the
tax base is made up of non-residential properties that were taxed at a rate of $1.80
+the $2.27 Provincial rate.

Utility rates for the fiscal period were as follows. Water cost was $1.18/m3 plus a
fixed cost of $51.25 per quarter. The annual sewer charge was $410 in 2022 for a
single-family house. A typical single-family home in Rothesay paid about $660 for
water and sewer services. Business and multi-family buildings pay by size of the
service connection to the Town systermn.




B. Expenses

EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

General
government
services
10%,

Water and sewer
services

16%

Recreation ang
cultural servj
14%

clive services
24%

Environme
developmel
EPEYisES,

%

The audited financial statements of the Town are found in Appendix F.

Doug MacDonald is the Town Treasurer.




/. PARKS & RECREATION

A. RECREATION

Rothesay Recreation Department provides numerous programming
opportunities for its citizens throughout the year. Facilities include the Rothesay
Arena, Bill McGuire Centre, Rothesay Common, Rothesay HIVE, and the Wells
Recreation Building. Through the summer months, the Recreation Department
offers summer programs from various locations within the commmunity. Highlights
for Rothesay Recreation in 2022 included our participation in Fundy Winterfest,
growth at the Rothesay HIVE, the return of our Canada Day on the Common
celebration, record participation in our playground programs and the 24th Annual
KV Santa Claus Parade.

e B sy g ¥

Despite COVID-19, it was a successful 2022 Fundy Winterfest in Rothesay with a
mix of in-person and virtual programs, events, and activities. We introduced three
new activities this year for residents and visitors to enjoy. The first being a contest
to win an ice fishing session with our partners at The Shacks; 468 people entered
the contest, and we were able to provide 16 groups with an hour of ice fishing at
Renforth Wharf. Qur second activity was free snowshoe rentals at River and Trail
Outdoor Company. Our department purchased 8 pairs of snowshoes and River and
Trail Outdoor Company ran the program out of their store. Over the course of 6
weeks, we had eighteen rentals which is a great start to this new program. Our last
addition was our Find Winter Waldo contest. Winter Waldo was hidden seven
times throughout our trail system. We had 84 groups who successfully spotted
Winter Waldo in our trails to enter that contest!



Other Fundy Winterfest activities in Rothesay included a Virtual Speaker Series,
Snowshoeing with the KV Walkers, Snowfolk Making Contest, Virtual Valentine's
Day live event with the Snow Queen, and a Moonlight Snowshoe and hike with
River and Trail Outdoor company that saw over 100 participants.

The Summer Playground Program had record numbers in 2022 with 314 kids who
registered to attend throughout the summer. We were happy to return to our
drop-in/punch pass programming format that operated out of Kennebecasis Park
Elementary School, Rothesay Park Middle School, and Wells Recreation Park from
June 27th to August 26th.

Both Kennebecasis Park and Renforth Beaches were open this summer and
guarded Monday to Friday from 1lam-5pm with Renforth Beach also under
lifeguard supervision on the weekends. The Town was able to hire seven lifeguards
who were certified to teach swimming lessons. We officially became an affiliate
member of the Life Saving Society which enabled us to offer the Swim For Life
programs at our beaches. We had eighteen kids register for our swimming lesson
programs this summer.

July ¥ saw the return of our in-person Canada Day Celebrations on the Rothesay
Common. Hundreds joined us to celebrate our Nation’s 155th Birthday. The
celebration began with a flag-raising ceremony that was followed by musical
entertainment, First Nations Storytellers, a reading circle with the Kennebecasis
Public Library, face painting, balloon animals, giant inflatables and bouncy castles,
a BBQ, popcorn, cotton candy, cupcakes, ice cream, and more!

1 .. p! ““"I #
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It was a successful community garden season with all 42 plots being rented, We
also hosted our 2nd Annual Halloween Skating Party at the Rothesay Arena where
participants were invited to come dressed up in their favorite costume.

The 24th Annual KV Santa Claus Parade took place along Hampton Road on
Saturday, November 26th. The parade was once again live streamed on Facebook
for anyone who preferred to watch from the comfort of their own home. The
Facebook video of the parade has over 2,600 views. With forty community groups
and businesses participating in the parade and an estimated 10,000 spectators
lined up along Hampton Road to watch it was another grand success. Next year is
the 25th Annual KV Santa Claus Parade with the theme “A Silver Christmas -
Celebrating 25 Years”.

The 8th Annual Mayor’s Tree Lighting event was hosted in person this year at the
Rothesay Common for the first time in 3 years. We had a great evening with live
musical entertainment, skating, hot chocolate, and gingerbread cookies.

The new year brought with it many challenges, opportunities, and successes to the
Rothesay HIVE. In the beginning of 2022, the Rothesay HIVE was closed due to the
COVID-19 Pandemic until February 7, 2022. In January of 2022, we brought back
the Rothesay HIVE memberships which were put on hold from November 2020 to
December 2021 due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. For the first year that Rothesay
Recreation Department has been responsible for the Rothesay HIVE we are proud
to have 122 HIVE members, over double the number prior to the pandemic. We
also offer a 3 Visit Trial for those who want to test out the Rothesay HIVE programs
and activities prior to becoming a member.

We have broadened our program offerings in 2022, including but not limited to:
Garden Club, Mahjong and Bridge Lessons, Movie Matinees, Tai Chi, and many
community events and programs. We still offer our popular fitness classes, book
club, coffee and chats, cards and board games, and host numerous information
sessions. Future Engage also began at the Rothesay HIVE this year. The program
is run by the Saint John Newcomers Centre and brings people of all ages and
backgrounds together for intergenerational and cross-cultural activities. The File
of Life continues to be a valuable and popular resource for the community which
can be accessed through the Rothesay HIVE. We are always striving to add new
programs and activities that will benefit our members. By connecting with
community organizations, we can create lasting connections between older
adults, future generations, and community supports,



B. PARKS

Rothesay maintains a network of parks and green spaces
| with major highlights such as the Rothesay Common, East
Riverside-Kingshurst Park, Steele-Kennedy Nature Park,
] Wells Recreation Park, Renforth Wharf Park and smaller

Q% gems such as Dobbin Park and 150 Anniversary Park. The
k| Town also maintains many outdoor recreation facilities

i including five ball fields, two synthetic turf surfaces at the
Arthur Miller Fields, two irrigated soccer pitches and
approximately 20 kilometers of walking, hiking and cross-
country ski trails.

o The new baseball field at Wells Recreation Park was
completed in 2022 and will open in the spring of 2023,

The construction of a 120-foot boardwalk along the McKeever Lake trail was
completed in 2022. This new 1.5km trail will be groomed for cross country skiing
and snowshoeing for the 2023/24 season.

Construction of the new building at Wells Recreation Park started in the fall.
Expected completion is the summer of 2023.

Phase 1 of the Rothesay Pickleball Court project was completed in 2022. Phase 2
will be finished in 2023 with two new pickleball courts adjacent to the Arthur Miller
Fields lower parking lot.

The Marigold Project - All three elementary schools in Rothesay participated. Over
250 children took part in growing Marigolds from seeds and planting them around
Rothesay.



Parks Rothesay Parks & Trails Trails

The Rothesay Common Wells Trail (12kms)
East Riverside-Kingshurst Park Hillside Trail {3 kms)
Steele-Kennedy Nature Park Bicentennial Trail (1.5km)
Wells Recreation Park Villa Madonna Trail (0.5 km)
Renforth Wharf Park

Jordan Miller Park
Stuart Dobbin Park
150 Anniversary Park

Charles Jensen is the Director of Recreation and Parks.
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C. LIBRARY

Library services for Rothesay residents are provided in partnership with the town
of Quispamsis and the Province of New Brunswick. The building in Quispamsis at
1 Landing Court is maintained by the two Towns and cost-shared on a per capita
basis. Permanent staff working in the library are employees of the Public Library
Service of New Brunswick. The original library opened its doors in 1984 and was
enlarged and renovated in 2013 at a total project cost of just under $6M. Rothesay's
share of 2022 operating cost is $83,217 (38.99% of the total cost). More information
on the Kennebecasis Public Library can be found on Facebook:

com/kennebpl

me
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The Acting Library Director is Norah Emerson.



D. ROTHESAY LIVING MUSEUM

The Rothesay Living Museum began as a partnership with Rothesay High School
designed to protect and maintain memorabilia and artifacts from the five
founding communities of the Town. It has evolved to a “digital museum” and can
be found at https.//www.rothesaylivingmuseum.com/. It is operated by a volunteer
committee that has collected stories of prominent citizens in written and audio
forms, as well as community artifacts. It also sponsored the publication of a book
and several special events. There are photographic displays located in various
schools in the community, and in the Common Room at Town Hall. Committee
activity was impacted by COVID-19 but the museum remains a repository for Town
history and an opportunity for everyone in the community to gain an appreciation
for how we came to be.

Winter Carnival on the Rothesay Common, 1945,



8. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

A. BUILDING PERMITS
In 2022 the Town issued 174 Building Permits.

Total Value of Construction for these permits was $22,184,326.96 - 2022, up 127%
from the 2021 total of $9,781,945.23.

The 2022 total value of building permit fees resulting from the permits is
$161,500.00 up from the 2021 total of $73,531.00.

B. BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT

The responsibilities of Town staff include enforcement of Town by-laws. The
following is the by-law enforcement activity in 2022.

T .
Zoning | Unsightly | Building O\?:‘:'nvgd Cormmercial | Anirmal Civic Moise
By-Law | Premises By-Law Lands Signage Control | Complaint | Complaint
2022 | 10 3 1 0 3 5 4 3

Pursuant to SECTION 5 a.{vii) of BY-LAW NO. 4-03 - PEACE, ORDER AND THE
PREVENTION OF NUISANCES.

“No person shall either directly or indirectly demand or invoke the official services
of any police officer, firefighter or other officer of Rothesay where no reasonable
cause exists for so doing;". Resolving disputes between neighbours is not part of
the mandate of municipal staff.

Directing water from downspouts onto a neighbour’s property and establishing a
business in a residential area are types of infractions staff dealt with in 2022.

C. PLANNING
The Province of New Brunswick lifted the COVID-19 Public Health restrictions on
March 14, 2022 The Planning Advisory Committee returned to in-person meetings
at Rothesay Town Hali, effective 4 April 2022. The Rothesay Planning Advisory
Committee had one of its busiest years on record, It met 11 times and reviewed
several major applications;



1. Rezoning 145 Hampton Road- 43-unit apartment building

2. Rezoning 95 Hampton Road -36-unit apartment building

3. Rezoning 2 & 4 Highland Avenue — 41-unit apartment building
4. Rezoning 50 Hampton Road - 27-unit apartment building

5. Rezoning Corner of Gondola Point Road and Clark Road - 24-unit
apartment building

6. 14 residential lot subdivision with new public road connections to Dunedin
Road and Higginson Avenue.

7. 30 seat commercial restaurant with drive-thru on the property at 110
Hampton Road

D. HERITAGE PRESERVATION BOARD
The Rothesay Heritage Preservation Review Board met three times in 2022. The
Heritage Permit applications under consideration included the replacement of the
Church sign at Saint David's United Church, installation of windows in the garage
at 18 HAMPTON Road and the installation of accessibility ramp on the Old Medical
Clinic at 8 GONDOLA POINT Road.

Brian White is the Director of Planning & Development Services.




9. PUBLIC WORKS

N

2022, the Public Works Department recorded 4,661,000 kg of salt/sand mixture

that was placed by monitored equipment during road maintenance.

The Department saw a busy year; staff responded to 208 Service Requests in 2022
and broken down in the table below.

Catch basins 13
Culverts 29
Ditches n
Crainage 5
General Drainage 85
General Transportation 22
Potholes 17
Roadkill 3
Signs 2
Snow Plow Damage 18
Street Lights 1
Traffic Lights 2
In 2022, the following infrastructure work was completed:

New Catch basins installed to help with drainage
“+ 10 Appleby Drive
% 2 New at 18 Eriskay Drive to help with winter run off and freezing
% 82 Hampton Road New catch basin and piping to make drop off sidewalk
safer
% 52 Gondola Point Road to help with winter run off and freezing.
9 pipe related repairs for the Utility Department
Tree removals in right-of-way
Tree Limbing in right-of-way
French Village sightlines (Opening up vegetation at intersections)
Fence at Rothesay Elementary School removed, reclaimed and reinstalled in
new location
Line Painting- stop bars, crosswalks and directional arrows
Curb Sweeping (Two machines)- 4 times during the year for maintenance
Street sweeping (4 Weeks) - once in the spring
Storm flushing - 5 weeks with rented flusher uni.
Shoulder and ditch repair in general
Seasonal wharf removal / installation for Parks Department at K Park and
Renforth
Shoulder mowing {ditches/slopes)



Mowing trail system for Parks
Mowing QOakville detention pond
Mowing sewer lagoons
Snowplow damage repair
Flagging for Parks Department for Hampton Road island maintenance -

ongoing all summer

e Pothole /patching asphalt repair

Asphalt Paving:

Broadway Street
Holiday Drive
Crestline Road
Forest Road
Bayley Road
Calistoga Road
Kildare Court
Crescent Drive
Park Drive
Princess Place
Seville Row
Frances Avenue
Beach Drive
Spruce Street
Scichilone Street

590 m
470 m
445 m
475 m
130 m
260 m
490 m
515m

160 m
60 m

275m
810 m
490 m
300m
200 m

Concrete Curb and Sidewalk:

Hazen Avenue
Kingswood

lona Avenue
Spruce Street
Gondola Point Road

0m

350m
240 m
305m
130 m




10. UTILITIES

A. WATER

In 2022, the Rothesay treatment plant at Carpenter Pond withdrew 687,125 m3 of
raw water from the well network to produce 653,527 m3 of drinking water for
distribution. With 23 new water connections and 19 new sewer connections,

production was high.

The following are the performance results for the three Town wastewater
treatment lagoons for 2022.

Treated Mg/litre Oxygen Mglitre ]
Lagoon Volumes (m?) Demand Suspended Solids
{cBOD) (TSS)
KPARK 215,094 35 25.25
RENFORTH 345107 7.25 9
FAIRVALE 2,832,471 17.3 20.8

Brett McLean is the Director of Operations (Works and Utilities).
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11. ENVISION SAINT JOHN:
THE REGIONAL GROWTH AGENCY

Introducing - Always Moving Forward

The region’s value proposition, or brand promise, was built on and validated by our
proven track record of forward-thinking, with Canada's first incorporated city at its
core and many notable firsts to it's name (Canada’s first bank, newspaper, and
museum — to name just a few). The region is united by pride of place and a strong
determination to grow. People here [ove to roll-up their sleeves and get things
done - providing a legacy of success that gives us an outsized advantage in
building for the future.

At the region’s core is a truly vibrant, contemporary city with a major port. Port
Saint John's modernization positions it as the Next Great Port in Canada - a clear
demonstration of Always Moving Forward. And there are many more like this.

Mulitiple billion-dollar companies are headquartered in our region providing a
legacy of success not typically found in a region of our size. Hosting the upcoming
Memorial Cup builds on our hockey history and reputation for hosting world-class
events. And the recently opened Area 506 Waterfront Container Village leans into
our natural assets as the only city on the Bay of Fundy with the backdrop of a
working port.

Even our Envision Saint John agency business model - our innovative,
collaborative approach to growing the region (the first of its kind in New
Brunswick] ~ reinforces our region’'s commitment to Always Moving Forward.

It's the region’s brand persona — The Gritty Go-Getter — that is driving the work of
Envision Saint John. We're creating new connections, expanding the traditional
economic development network, looking for diverse perspectives, tapping into
different talent, and bringing new voices to the table.

You will also start to notice a new Saint John region wordmark designed to reflect
the connected nature and forward momentum of Saint John and its surrounding
communities. The connected letters represent our togetherness - as a people, as
a place and our vision for the future, And the directional arrow reaches ahead,
representing a region that is forward-thinking, poised for future growth, and
Always Moving Forward,

The Saint John region is the powerhouse that will drive growth for NB.



12. APPENDICES

A. DONATIONS

RECIPIENT TYPE [|FORM | $ PURPOSE
KV3C grant Inkind | 2,500 Space in McGuire Centre
NB Medical Education Trust grant cash 5,000 Medical education
KV Food Basket grant cash 500 To offset cperating cost
KV Food Bank via Quispamsis grant cash 4,000 To offset rental cost
St Joseph's Hospital Foundation gront | cash 1,000 To support programs
You Can Ride Two) grant cash 1,000 To offset operating cost
Rothesay High School grant cash 1,000 Student scholarship
KV Oasis Youth Centre grant cash 2,500 To offset operating cost
Saint John Theatré Co. grant cash 1,000 To offset operating cost
Symphony N.B. grant cash 1,000 To offset operating cost
Junior Achievement N.B. grant cash 300 To offset operating cost
CIMB-FM Oldies 96 grant cash 1,000 To offset operating costs
KV Girls Softball grant cash 500 To support programs
SJ Regional Hospital Foundation grant cash 1,000 To support programs
RNS Arts Show grant cash 500 To support donations
NB Competitive Festival of Music grant cash 250 To support programs
St Paul’s Church grant cash 500 To support programs
Saint John Seafarer’s Mission. grant cash 250 To support programs
Shining Horizons Riding Association grant cash 1,200 To offset operating cost
Kennebecasis Rowing & Canoe Club | grant | cash 2,500 To support programs
KVMHA grant cash 500 To support programs
8radley Joudrey grants | cash 500 To support programs
NB Sport Hall of Fame grants | cash 225 To support event
TOTAL $30,725
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Legend
Present
Absent
No Mtg

Jan10

Feb 14

Mar 14

Apr1

Apr 12 Public Hrg

Apr 25 Public Hrg

Apr 26 Public Hrg

May 9

May 16 Special

Jun 13

Julm

Aug 8

Aug 15 Public Hrg

Aug 15 Public Mtg

Sep 12

QOct 1

Nov 1

Nov 14

Dec12




Jan10

Feb 14

Mar 14

Apr 1l

May 2

May 9

May 13

Juni3

Juim

Aug 8

Sep 12

Oct 3

Oct N

Nov 1

Nov 14
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Nov 28

Dec12

<

*Conflict of Interest (COI} declared

Closed Committee Meetings

Finance Committee
31 March 2022

21 April 2022

21 July 2022

25 August 2022

29 September 2022
20 October 2022



Mayor Grant

$37,000

Councillor
McGuire

$18,000

C. COUNCIL REMUNERATION

D/Mayor
Alexander

$20,100

Councillor
Mackay
French

$18,000

Councillor
Shea

$18,000

Councillor
Boyle

$18,000

Councillor
Lewis

$18,000

Councillor
Brown

$18,000

Expenses - Mobility Charges (iPADs)
Mayor Grant - $300
Councillors - $2,539

SENIOR STAFF SALARY RANGES

POSITION SALARY RANGE

Director Administrative Service/Clerk

Director Parks &Recreation

Director of Planning & Development

Director of Operations

Treasurer

Town Manager

100,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
150,000

- 125,000
- 125,000
-125,000
- 125,000
- 125,000
- 175,000




D. 2022 EVENTS ATTENDED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL

January 2022

Jan3 New Year's Message to CBC

Jan18 Video for Chinese New Year

Jan 23 Photo for Pink Shirt Day

Jan 31 Video for Winterfest (Wells)

February 2022

Feb 25 Opening of KAM Institute of Design

Feb 26 Branch 58 Legion Fundraiser

March 2022

Mar 16 Funding Announcement for Wells Building

Mar 19 Branch 58 Legion Fundraiser

Mar 28 Regional Chamber of Commerce Luncheon

Mar 30 Community input into Health and Technology District
Mar 31 USPORTS Championships at Fieldhouse

April 2022

Apr 5 Envision Meeting and Luncheon

Apr9 Jervis Bay Legion Fundraiser for Ukraine

Apr13 CBC Interview RE: Changing Density in Rothesay
Apri9 The Wave interview RE: Rothesay Road

Apr 26 “Thank Yous" delivered to schools (Earth Day Clean Up)
Apr 29 Kick off to Cruise season

May 2022

May 2 ENVISION Saint John Regional Mayors Luncheon

May 11 Cheque presentation to KV Girls Softball

May 18 Saint John Catalytic Projects Launch

May 20 Kennebecasis Regional Police Force (KRPF) Open House
May 20 Video for Intergenerational Day Canada

May 24 Regional Chamber of Commerce: State of the City
May 26 Red Triangle Award dinner

May 28 Quispamsis Lions Club CNIB Dog Walk

May 28

Asian Heritage Month Gala



June 2022

Junel Intergenerational Day Celebration — Rothesay Hive

June East Coast Games Kickoff Reception

June 3 Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Retirement Reception D/C
Chief Dan McCoy

June 3 Rothesay Netherwood School Graduation and Closing
Ceremonies

June s Queen's Jubilee Tea, St. Paul's Church

June 7 David Goss Walk'n'Talk

June East Coast Games Opening Ceremony — Softball (Counc. Boyle)

June 13 Chamber of Commerce Luncheon (Premier — State of the
Province}

June 14 Saint John Regional Hospital Foundation Reception

June 17 QMIHL Memorial Cup at Rothesay Town Hall

June 18 Rothesay Netherwood School Founder’'s Dinner

June 21 Platinum Jubilee Tree Planting - Veteran's Memorial Park with
Branch 58 Legion

June 21 Photo with Rothesay's “White Heart" at East Riverside-Kingshurst
Park

June 22 QMIHL Memorial Cup game with Regional Mayors

June 23 Rothesay High School Graduation Ceremony (Deputy Mayor
Alexander)

June 30 Sweet Caroline Foundation

July 2022

July 1 Canada Day celebrations

July 5 Welcome Stephanie Labbé to Arthur Miller Fields

July 7 Concert in the Common

July 12 ENVISION Saint John Regional Mayors

July 15 Kennebecasis Regional Police Force Community BBQ

July 24 Welcome Kayleigh Rafter and KGSA to Wells Ballfield

July 24 Operation White Heart Fundraiser

July 28 Community PSA for Oldies 96

August 2022

Aug 3 Port of Saint John Tour with Deputy Prime Minister Chrystia
Freeland

Aug 6 Saint John Pride Parade (Councs. Boyle and Mackay French)

Aug 9 Maiden Factor/Port Saint John Dinner

Aug 9 Visit to Kennebecasis Paddling Club RE: Canada Summer
Games

Aug 12 Photo Op with rowers off to Canada Summer Games



Aug 22 KV Walkers Ramble

Aug 25 Premier Higgs Meet and Greet

September 2022

Sept 1 Rothesay Park School: Opening of Outdoor Learning Space

Sept 6 Visit to Rothesay Athletics and Training

Sept 10 Branch 58 Legion Music Party

Sept 13 Dedication of new Coast Guard ship

Sept 19 St. Paul's Church Requiem Eucharist for Queen Elizabeth i

Sept 24 Branch 58 Legion Fundraising supper

Sept 29 “The Joanne Project” at Rothesay High School

October 2022

Oct 4 Water Tasting at American Waterworks Association Atlantic
meeting

Oct 6 Future Engage with Saint John Newcomers Centre

Oct 15 Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Open House

Oct 18 Regional Chamber of Commerce Outstanding Business
Awards

Oct 19 Sophia Recovery Centre Sunny Side Up Breakfast

Oct 20 Saint John Rotary Club Gala

Oct 28 Branch 58 Legion Poppy Campaign Kickoff

Oct 29 Rocmaura Gala

November 2022

Nov 5 Greater Saint John Sports Hall of Fame Induction Ceremony

Nov 10 RUSI Pre-Remembrance Day Dinner

Nov 11 Remembrance Day Service at Qplex

Nov 11 Branch 58 Legion Reception

Nov 17 PRO Kids Dinner (Councs. Boyle and Brown)

Nov 22 INNOVATE NB Awards

Nov 24 Saint John Newcomers Centre Volunteer Appreciation Night

Nov 26 KV Santa Claus Parade

Nov 29 Saint John Immigration Launch

Nov 30 Saint Andrews Society of Saint John

December 2022

Dec1 Christmas message for Oldies96

Dec 6 New Brunswick Medical Education Trust Open House

Dec7 Saint John Newcomers Centre English classes

Dec?7 Port Saint John Holiday celebration

Dec10 Rothesay Ballet presentation “The Nutcracker”

Dec 12 Saint John Newcomers Centre Grand Opening
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E. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ROTHESAY
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022
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INDEPENDENT ALUDITORS' REPORT

To Het Worship The Mayor and Members of Council
Rathesay, New Brunswick

Opinion

We have nudited the consolidated financial statements of Rothesay (the 'tawn™), which comprize the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, and the consclidated statements of
operations, changes i net debt and cach flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial slutements, including a summary of signilicant accounting policies.

In vur vpinion, these copsolidated financial statements present faicly, in all matenal respeets, the
financial position of the Town as at December 31, 2022, and the cesnlts of ity operations and 13 cash
flows fur the year dien ended in accordance with Canadian pubhic sector accounting standarnds

Rarie for Opimon

We conducted our audit in acconfance with Canadian gencrally sccepted auditing standacds Our
responsibilities under those standards are further doscribied i the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Finuncial Statemenls section of aur report. We are independent of the Town in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financie! statements in Canada,
aml we have fullilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with those regquirements. We
believe that the andrt evidence we have obtained i3 sofficient and appropriate to provide a basis fog vur
opinion,

Responsibilizies of Management and Those Charged witk Governance for the Cansolidated Financial
Statementy

Management 13 responaible tor the preparation and fair presentetion of these consalidated fingncial
stalements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such interna! cantrol
o= manggement determings s necessary to cuable the preparaiion of censolidated financial statements
that are free from material wisstatement, whether due to fraud or errur.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Town's
ality  continue as a going concern, disclosing, a5 applicable, malters relaling W going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless emanagetnent either intends 1o liyuidate the Town of to
cease operations, of Lhas no reabistic alternative but to do so

Those charged with governance are responsibl for overseeing the Townt's financial reporting process
Auditors' Respunsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidared Financial Stavements

Cur objectives are ta abtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free Jrom matersal misstateneid, whether due 10 fraud or emror, and o issue an audiors’
ruport that includse our opion Reastonable atsuranze is a high level of asturance, but 1 nut a guorantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian gencrally accepted auditing standards will afways
deteet a material misstatement swhen ir exists.  Misstntements can orse from frand or error and are
canstdered material if, individually or i the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of useérs taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

{continues)
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Independent Auditors' Report ta Her Worship The Mayor and Membors of Council of Rothesay (cont'd)

Auditors’ Responsibiliries for the Audit of the Consolidated Finamcial Statements (eors'dy

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted avditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audic. We also:

. Idenuify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether du¢ Lo fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive io those risks, and
ohtain sudit evidence that is sntficient and appropriate ta provide & basis for cur opinton. The
risk of not detecting s matesial misstaternent resulling from feaud is higher than for one resulting
framn error, a3 fraud may involve collusion, forgery, ntentional amissinns, misrepreseatations, or
the override of interal contral,

. Obtain an undenstanding of internal control relevant o the audit in order to dusign audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nat for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the ¢ffectiveness of the Town's internat control.

. Evaluste the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonabicness of accounting
estimates and celated disclosures made by manzgement

. Canclude on the sppropriateness of management’s use of the gning concern basis of sccounting
and, bascd on the asdit evidence cbiained, whether a material uncentainty exists related to eveuls
or conditions that may cast significant Joubt on the Town's ability (v continue a3 a going
concem. If we conclude that o material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures i the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inndequate, to modify aur opinion. Qur conclusions ove based on the andit
evidence obtained up to thwe Jaie of our auditors' report Howeves, future svents or conditions
may cause the Town to cease to continue as a gaing cancern.

* Evaluate the overall presentstion, structure and content of the consolidated linsncial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and cventa in a manner that achieves fair presentation

We communicated with those chaiged with governance segarding, anoug other matters, the planued

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findinga, inchiding any sigriticant deticiencies in
internal contrel that we identify during our audi.

N

CHARTERLD PROFESSIONAT. ACCOUNTANTS

Kaine John, NR
April 18,2023

& addvistrs
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ROTHESAY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMHBER 31, 3022

REVENUE

Property tax warrant

Unconditional grant

Conditional government transfers {Norc 28)
Services other governmenls

Sale of services (Mote 28)

Othier own source (Nole 28)

Water and sewer user fees

Sundry income

EXPENDITURE {Note 28)

Creneral govemment services
Profective services

Transporiation services
Enviconmental heallh services
Environmental development services
Recreation and cultural services
Water and sewer services

ANNUAL SURPLUS FOR THF. YEAR
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS -

BEGINNING OF YEAR

CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP OF CONTROLLED

ENTATIES (Nate 2)

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS -

END OF YEAR

2022
Bodget
{Note 27)

$18.181,510
130,973
1,190,000
0,000
119,300
82,943
3,151,780
264090

24,481,205

2,351.067
5,686,685
5,546,451
862,000
£32, 700
2,963,304
-3.460,190

21,352 167
§_1.0028 808

2022
Actual

$ 18,181,510
130,972
2375988
81,306
475,710
967,681
3,163,226
__ 634317
20011219
2,229,502
5,574,528
6,996,414
962,281
$68,112

3,185,894
3,605,789

23222 34Q
2,788,670
85,196,828

54

$87.940.925

Actual

§17.002,299
131,393
2.286,228
80,180
459,024
112,770
3,077,512
194,176

21,543,382
2,051,047
3,067,807
5,520,009

854,521
507,044

3,036,557
~LE22SGE

20,552,333
2,983,829

52,162,618
-8}

$.83, 148,228
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ROTHESAY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash und cash equivalents (Note 4)
Accuunts receivable (Note 5)
Investments {(Nat= 10)

LIABILYIIES
Accounts payable and accrued labilitzes (Note 9)
Defered revenue (Note 8)
Long terus detd (Note 11) )
Accrued peasion obligation (Note 16)
Accrued sick Jeave (Note 15)
Accrued retirement ajjowance (Note 16}

NET DEBT
NUN-FINANUIAL ASSBAS

Tangible capital assets (Note 21)
Accumulated amortization (Note 21)

inventory
Prepaid cxpenses
Unamortized debenture costs

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
CONTINGENT LIABILITY (Note 17)
COMMITMENT (Nete 18)

APPROVED BY:

I

I TR % s
Ml B R A Mayor

\J\aj[ = ?(‘:'},é?—:-j Town Treasuret

2022 2021

$10,323,104  §10,449,858
1,550,159 1,357,294
45227 290428

§12210450 §12097.380

§ 2832,770 S 1,869,636
3,592,555 3,982,636
1,050,967 14,335,218
0,152 .89
142,374 204,289

20607318 21,875,528
-(B.ATLE48) _(9.477.045)
164,706 278 158,983,625
(68.332.333) (64.414.22T)
96,348,925 94,569,398

35,691 31,163
32,923 22,507
1.234 1,705

96418773 94624713
$82,04002¢ 85146828

teed caunders e el
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ROTHESAY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CIHANGES DY NET DEBT
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

Annual surplus

Acquisttion of 1angible capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets
Amartization of tanghle capital asscts
Change i nwnership of tangihle capital assets
Loss on disposal of tangihle capital asgscta

Acquisition of inventorics

Acquisttion of peepaid assets

Acquisition of unamortized debenture costs
Cansumption of inventories

Use of prepuid assets

Consumption of unsmortized debenture costs

Change in ownership of controlled entities
Decrease in net debi

Nel debi - beginnmyg of year

Net debt - end of year

APFROVED BY:

¥ !

—7" 4300 2 ;»---m '?', Muyor
A\h}z T-Lpf-{ Town Treasuzer

2022

$ 2,188,670
(6,669,289)
4758755
{5,711
1,008,143
{35,601)
(32.923)
(1.234)
31,163

22,507
L1203

994,670

5427

1,000,097
_{9.472.943)
3_(R:A72,848)

2021
§ 2,083,829

(5,882,178)
12,423
4,649,782
7%
307,868
2,131,800

{31,163
(22,500
{1,705)
16,268
21,059
R

2,116,931

381

2,417,312
[11.395.257)
5_(2.472.945)
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ROTHESAY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3t, 2022

INCREASE (DECREASEF) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

OPERATING TRANSACTIONS
Annusl surplus
Loss on disposal of tangihle caputal assets
Amorstization of tangible capital agsets
Accounts reccivable
Accounis payable end scorued Habilities
Deferred revenic
Atcrued sick lepve
Chunge in accrued pension oblipation
Change in acerued retireiment allowance

Change in inventory repaud expenses unaniortized debentuse costs _ (14.473)

CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS
Acquitition of tangible capital asscts
Change in uwnership of capital assets
Preceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets

FINANCING TRANSACTION
Long tenn detw {net)

INVESTING TRANSACTION
Increase (devrense) in investments

CHANGE IN OWNERSILII OF
CONTROLLED ENTITEES

NET INCREASE [N CASll AND CASH
EQUTVALENTS

CASIL AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

iz 2021
§ 2,188,670 £ 2981829
136,748 167.868
4,758,755 4,649,782
{192,865) £56,669
963,084 54,509
{390,081} 649978
(61,915) (85,717}
(61,741) (107,72
PYRIY 19,003
— {14.86%)
1973869 _9.373.325
(5,669,289) {5.882,178)
G710 76
5 12.423
16,6735.000) (5.802.67%
(137525 £1 178.894)
(1.378.253) LL378.894)
— (34,799 — 88217
5427 341
(125.758) 2211410
4B 238,448
$10.324,10¢ $10,449.45%
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ROTHESAY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022
PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Rothesay ("the Town™} was incorparated as a town by the Provinee of New Hrunswick
Municipalities Act on Junusry 1, 1998 and was approved for status as &8 Municipality effective
Janivary 1, 1998 by an amendment of New Drunswick Regulation 85-6 under the Municipalities Act.
As 3 municipality, Rothesay is exempt [rom income 1ax under section 149(1)c) of the Canadun
Income Tan Act

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial satoomnty GF e Vown ans tho aeprascaiatioms of managemen) propars! in suoogdanes
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for local government, as jecommended by
the Publie Sector Accounting Board (PSAD) of the Chartered Frnfessional Accountants of Canada

The focus uf Public Sector Accounting Standards ('PSAY’) financial statements is on the financial
position of the Town and the changes thereto. The consolidated statement of financial position
includes all uf the assets and liabilities of the Town and its jomtly suntrolled entities,

Significant nspects of the sccounting policies edopted by the Town are as faltows:
Reporting Cntity

The consolidated finsncial statsments reflect the sssets, liahilities, revenues, expenditures and
changes in net debl and cash flows of the reporting entily. The reporting entity is comprised of all
orgemizations and snterprises accountable for the administration of their affairs and resources w the
Town and which are awned or jointly controlled by the Town

The entities included in the consclidated financial statements are as follows:

- Rothesay

- Kennebecasis Regional Jout Board of Police Conunissioners (KRIBPC)
- Kennclieeasts Valley Fire Depanment loe. (KYED)

- Kenneheeasis Public Library

Interdepartmental and arganizational transactions and balahces are climinated

The jointly controlied entities have been proportionately consolidared at the following rates:

2022 2021
Kennehecasis Regronal Joint Boarl of
Police Commissioners 40.05% 40.08%
Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department ne, A1.493% 4. 77%
Kennehecasis Pubiic |ibrary IR 8 9urta

Changes in ownership percentages have been accounted for as an adjustment to accumulated surplus
(deticst)

Owmnership percentages on any dissolution of the controlled entity may vary ttom the abave
depending upon the terms of the agreements.

-

& advisory
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ROTHESAY

NOTES 10 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMDER 31, 2022
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Budget

The budget figuics contained in 1hess consolidated Gnancial statements were approved by Council
on November 13, 2021 and the Director of Community Finances on November 25, 2021,

Financial [nstruments

Financial instruments ace recorded ar (air value when acquired or issued  In subseguen! perivds,
equity instruments with aclively traded markets are reported at fair value, with any unrealized gains
losses reporied in annual sumplus.  All other financial instruments are eported at amndtized costs,
and tested far impainment al each reperting date. 'Transactions costs on the acquusition, salc or issue
of Ninanciul instruments are expensed when incurred.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include eash an hand and halances with banks and short term deposits
with onginal maturitics of three months or less

cvenuc Recognition

Vlnrestncted revenuc is recorded an an acerual basis and is recognized when collection is reasonably
mssured.  Restricted contributivng are recognized as revenue in the year in which the retated
expensas are incursed

Qither revenue 15 recorded when it is camed.
Expendilure Recoantion
Expendlures are recorded on an sccrual basis.

Measurement Lincertsinty

The preparation of the consolidated finanzial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
secaunting standards requires manapement to make estimates that affect the reported smount of
axsels and liabilities and disclosure of conbngent assets and lichilities 2t the date of the financisl
stateanents and the repurled amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting perted.  These
estimmates are reviewed periodically. and as sdjustments become necessary, they are reported in
earnings in the pertod in which they become Knowin. Actual rewlls may Jiffer fearn those estimates

Examples of sigaificant e gimates include
- the allowance for doubiful accounts,
- praviding for amortizatian of angible capital as.uts;
- the estimared usefiul hves of tangible capiral assets,
- the receverability of tanpible capital awets; and
- pot employment benefsty lability

Inventaries

Inventories are valued at the lower ofcost and nct realizable value with cost bring determined on the
first in, first oug basis

teed SaUﬂldEfls I oy
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ROTHESAY
NOTES 10 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022
SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Capital Reserves

The use of the Capital Reserve Funds is restricted to capital acquisitions. The intention 15 w0 use
these funds for future capital sequisitions and reduce future harrowing tequirements

Operating Reserves
The use of these funds is restricted ta payment of operating expenses
Tengible Copital Assets

Tangible cupital assets are recocded at cost which includes all amgunts that ae direeily attributable
t sequisilion, construction, developrnent or betterment of the oxyet, The cosd of the tangible copital
asset, less any rasidual value when appliceble, &5 wmortized on a straight-line basis over the
estumated useful fives as follows

Asset Type Estimated Useful Eife
Land nnprovements 10-75 years
Busldings and leasehold impeovements 2040 years
Vehicles 3-25 years
Machinery and equipment 3-20 years
Roads and stieets 5-75 years
Storm sewer 25-60 years
Water and wastewater networks 30-60 years

Assets under constryction are nol amodized until the asset is availlable for productive use.

The Town is a divessified muuicipal unit that provides a wide range of services 1o i3 residents. Foz
management reporting purposes, the Town's aperations and activities are nrganized and rcported by
function. This presentation was created for the purpose of recarding specific activities to anain

certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions ar limitations.  Municipal
services are provided by deparuments as follows:

Gieneral Ciovernment Services

This deparimert is responsible for the overall governance and financial administration uf the
Town. This tncludes Council functions, general and financiel management, legal matiers and
compliance with legislation, as well as civic relations.

Projgetive Sucvies,
This depariment is responsible for the provision of policing services, fire protection, emergency
measured, animal control and other proteclive measures

Transnostation Seryices
This departioent is responsible for comman services roads and streets mainitenance, sticer
lighting, traffic scovices, parking and cther tran portation related functions.

Environmental Health Services
This department is responsible for the provision of waste callection end dispuval

9% doyle
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont'd)
Segmented lnfarmation {cont'd}

Euvironmental Development Services
This deparmment 13 respensible for planning and zoning, cammunity development, fourism and
other municipal development and promotion srvices

Recreation and Culrural Services
This department 15 respenssble for the maintenance and cperation of recreational and cultoral
fecilities mcluding arena, parks and playgrounds end oltier recreational and cultural facilities.

Water gad Sewer Scrvices

s department is tesponsible for the prowision of water and sower services mcluding the
maintenance and operation of the underground networks, Ircatment plants, reservoirs and
lagoons.

The Tewn has documented a schedule of segmented disclosure m Note 23
Post Emplovment Henelits

{he Town recognizes its obhgabons under past employment beaefit plans anid the retated costs, aet
of plan assets  The Town has a sick leave benefil as documented in Note |5 and a pensiun plan and
retirenent allowance a3 ducumented in Note 16,

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Town i3 exposed to varinus risks theongh its financil instruments and has a comprahensive risk
wanagement framewark to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks. The following analysis
provides information ahaut the ' own's risk exposure and cancentration as of December 31, 2022;

Credit Risk

Credit rizk arises from the potential that o counter party will ful to perform its obligatons. The
Town is exposed to credit risk from its accounts receivable. The Town minimizes credit risk
throngh ongomg credit management.

Liyidily Risk

Liqudity risk is the risk thiar an entity will eacounter difficulty in meeting obligations assactated
with financial Labilities. T'he Town is cxposed to this risk mainty in respect of its receipt of funds
from iis customers and other related sources, bag term debl, accounts payable and sccrucd
liabil:ces and other obligaticns

Cumency Risk

Curteney nisk 15 the fsk tn the company’s camings that anise frum fluctuations of foreign exchange
rates and the degree ofvolatility of these rates. The Town & oot exposed te foreign curency risk as
it does not held foreign currencies.

accountants
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2022
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {contd)
Interest Rate Risk

Intorest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely sffected by a
chonge in the interest rates. In scching tn mimmaze the nisks feoin interest rate fluctuations, the
Town manapes exposure thruugh its normal operuting and financing activities. The Town is nat
expoted 10 interest rate risk ay its long term debt does not have & variable interest rate,

CASH
022 2021
Untestisted 4 2313433 § 2687892
Restricted - reserve fands (Note 25) 7,750,182 7,452,718
Restricted - cantrolled entities 260,089 __Joo2a)y

310324 10 510449 858

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Fiir ¥ 2021
Duc stom the Federal Govenunent and i1s apencies (Note ) $ 493,688 £ 366,741
Pue from the Province of New Biunswick (INote 7) 58,921 69,101
Water and sewer 852,549 860,610
Areny 33,374 41,542
Qther 58429 P L

§_1.350.159 $ 11372294

DUE FROM FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AND ITS AGENCIES

2022 021
Canads Revenue Agency (HST sefund) £ 447,588 $ 321432
RCMP Secandments 16,098 — 45309

§__493.68¢ 5 366741

DUE FROM PROVINCE OF NEW HRUNSWICK

2012 a1
Depariment of Teansporation and [Rfrastructure $ 29,650 5 69,101
Departinent of Justice and Public Safety 29331 :
5 54,921 564101

teed saunders
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022
8. DEFERRED REVENUE

Government transfers - Gas Tax
Deferred revenue - Guispamsis
Deferred revenue - K-Park Levy (Note 1d)

% ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILIFIES

Accounts payable - trade
B1d deposits

Accrued interest
Accrued lishihitics
Accounts payable - other

10. INVESTMENTS

1022

ni

$ 13,580,541 § 3,890.604

78,686

12,612 13344
$.3,392555  $_1982.636

LI

$_2

2022 204
862,917 ¥ 13032439
129,050 161 .260
17.332 18322
121471 3719241
- 1A
2170 S LAEO.6RE

The itivestineats represent the Town's proporticrate share of the investments of the KRIBPC. The
mivestnients consist of shott teym aotes, canadian equities awd feeign 2quities and are recorded at
fair market value. The unrealized gain (Joss) on the investments at December 31, 2022 way
(341,766, (2021 - $26,224). The investments are restrictod far Rsture payment of retirement

benefits,
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022
LONG TERM DENT
{a) Cicneral Cepital Fund
Balance Lssued Redeemed Balaaee
January 1, during during Decerober 31,
1022 year year 2022

MNew Hrurawick Municipal Financing, Carparation

Debentures

BGLS 1.65% - 3.80%,
due 2027, OIC & 10-12,
1170, 99.77 $ 149,000
BL26 1.2% - 1.7%,
due 2034, OIC # 03.88,

11271, 13.08 2,194,000
BN17 1.05% - 1.15%,
due 2025, OTC ¥ 10-12, 13-08 787,000
BOIO 1.45% - 3.50%,
due 2011, OIC # 13-08 1207000
BX18 0 90% - 2.95%,
due 2040, IC # 19-0020 965,000
HY23 0.50% - | X0%,
due 2030, OIC # 19-0020 116,000
$.5218.000

s - $ 134000 § 15,000
. 196000 1998000
189,000 59%,000

: 196,000 1,111,000
35,000 930,000

2 — 34000 __282.000

S 5__JR4000 $_1,934.000

Principal paymnents reqaiced during the next five years for the Geaeral Capatal Fund are as folluws

227 - $667,000, 2024 - $682,000; 2025 - $637,000; 2026 - $440,000, 2027 - $293,000

1
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022
1l. LONG TERM DEBT (cont'd)

(b} Water and Sewser Capstal Fund

Bataoce Lssued Redeemed Halance
January 1, duriog during December 31,
2022 year year W22

New Brunswick Municipa! Financing Corporaton
Debentures:
CA20 0.855% - 2.378%,

due 2031, OIC 4 00-0018 $ 936000 § - ¥ 89,000 § 867,000
BGI91.65 - 3.80%,

dize 2027, OICE 11-8045 393,000 . 14,000 179,000
RH23 1.35 - 3.80%,

duc 2032, QIC # 00-0018 443,000 . 3000 408,000
BL27 1.2% - 1,7%,

duz 2034, OIC# 11-0045 836,000 . 16,000 810,000
BNI18 1.05% - 3.15%,

due 2025, OIC ¥ 15-38 150,000 36,000 114,000
HBP21 {.20% - 3.80%,

due 2036, OIC £ 18-0020 752,000 - 23,000 111,850
BR22 1.65% - 1.30%,

due 2037, DIC# 15-0069 1,179,000 32,000 1,147,000
BL2]2.55% - 37,

due 2038, OIC # 15.0069, -

960086, 96-0072 1,153,000 - 83,000 1,670,000
BY24 0.50% - 2.60%

due 20, OIC 4 19-0020 131000 - 20000 J— 3 TN

6,592,000 335,000 6,237,000

Canada Mortgage and Housing Carporation
CWHC 3708, due 2030

OIC # 09-019, 0Y-13%, 10082 L9u9,191 : 178,822 1,730,362
$.8501,191 5. : $_ 533,822 §_7.967369

Approval of the Municips! Capital Borruwing Board has been oblained for the long term debt

The Water and Sewer Capital Fund contains lang term debt of $410,926 (2021 - §445,272) (5sued to
fund local improvement piojests  The dubt will be repaid over a pericd of time through the
<ollectton of Jocal improvement levies,

Principal payutents required during the rext five years for the Water and Sewer Capita] Fund aro as
follows

2023 - $548.498,; 2024 - $3565435; 2025 - $5/9,629, 2026 - §360,090, 2027 - $37/.815

In 2027, debenture BCIY will mawre with o final amount due of $303,000, kowever it 15 expecled
that §303,000 of 1his payment will be refinanced during that year for an additional ten years.

tead saunders e Lo iy
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DLCEFMBER 33, 2022
LONG TERM DEBT {cont'd)

{61 Jointly Cantrotled Engiry - KRIBIC {proportionate share)

Balance Essued Redeemed Balance
January [, during duriag December 31,
2022 year year W22

New Brunswick Munic:pal Financing Corporation
Debentures:
BL151.2% -3.1%,

due 2024, OIC A 02-66,03-53 s 64,123 S - 0 20888 § 0 43244
BN35 1.05% - 3.15%,

due 2025, QK4 03-53 151,904 : 36,560 —_1£5,344

§__ 216027 § B b 37429 §__ 158,598

Principal payments required during the next five years aze as follows.

0273 - $58,473; 2014 - 360 376; 2025 - $39,649

‘Lotat Lon g term debt;
2022 2021
General Capital Fuad $ 4,934,000 3 5,718,000
Water and Scwer Capital Fund 7,967,369 8,501,191
Jaintly Contealied Enuty - KRIPC — 138,598 —a210.027
513,039,967 $1L335218
LAND FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES

In accordance with the Comununity Planning Act. the Town has the authority to set aside up to 10%.
of wny land subdivided, or vp to 8% of the monetary volue of such land, 43 a wserve  As well, any
praceeds on the sale of public lands must be reserved These funds can only he used for fhe
purchase or development of public lands and ars included in the Reserve Funds (Note 25)

SEWER OUTFALL RESERVE.

In accordance with an agreement with the Municipality of Quispamsis, Rothesny and Lhe
Municipality of Quispumsis are required (o Tund, oo an annust basis, an amount 1o cover Lhe
operating and maintenaice ¢osis aswaciated with the shared sewer effluent line and outfall pipe. The
contributions are made on a per umt hasis, with Rothesay contethiting $1 per unit and the
Municipahty of Quispamsis conwibuting S2 per unit. Any accumulated amounts are transferred to
the Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund for future capital expenditures. At December 31, 2022,
the balanes in this reserve was $319,717 (2011 - $196,690).

L5

teed saunders
doyle |

accountants

& dvisors




ROTHESAY

NOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022
14. DEFERRED REVENUE

o 2002, the Town issued a special warant of assessment 10 the residents of Kennebecasis Park for
local improvements made 1o the area  The assessment wtll be invoiced annually over a periad of 30
years. A number of residents peid the eatire Jevy amount in the first year, and as a resuit, the
prepayment has been recnrded as deferred revenue to he amontized over 29 years

15, ACCRUED SICK LEAVE

Rothesay provides non-unionized empluyees sick leave that accumulates at a rate of 18 hours per
month und a cate of 1.5 days per month of service for unionized employess. Non-union employees
can accumulate 1o 2 makimom of 2,408 hours and can lake leave witli pay fur an armount of time
equal to the accunmlated sick leave Unionized einployees can accumnulate up to 150 days of sick
leave

KVFD provides sick leave that accumulates at a rate of 183 hours per month while the employees
sick bank is betow 1,000 hours, and at 133 houis per inonth while the sivk bauk is above 1,000
hoars,  All employees can accumnlate to a maximum of 2,184 sick leave hours and ean take leave
with pay for an amount of time equal to the accumulated sick lesve.

An actuanal valuation in aceordance wath PRA 3255, was pertormied for cach plan, the 43 employee
plan for Rothesuy and the 37 employee plan for KVFL). The sctuarial method used was the
Projected Unit Credit pro-rated on service to expected usage. The valuation was based on a number
nf assomptions abor fisfune events, anch 24 inferest rates, wage and salary inersases anul employee
turover and reticement  The assumptions used reflect the Town's and KVFDYs best estinates

The following summarizes the major sssumptions w0 the valuation

- annual salury inerease is 3% for Rothesay and 2.25% for KVFD,

- the discount rate used to determine the accrued benefit obligations is 2.54% for Rothesay and
1.9%% for KVFD; :

- retirement age is 65 for Rothezay and 60 for KVFD, and

- estimated pet excess utilization of rate of sick leave varies with age

The sick leave is an nnfunded bencfit and as such, there arc o applicable assets. Benefits are paid
out of goneral revenue as they come due.

The consolidated unfunded kability consist of

Estimated
2022 2021
Rothesay $ . $ -
KRIBPC £9128 6,131
KVED — 135,446 198158

142,374 $_ 204,289
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ROTHESAY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

16. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE

L& FARCe 4

Rothesay's retiring employces are entitled to four weeks' regular salary for every five years ol
employment 1o a maximum of 26 weeks. The employee must he 55 years of age to receive the
benefit.

Ihe accrued liahlity is based on an actuanal valuation as a1 December 31, 2019, which used a
discount rate of § 7§% and an annual sulary increase rate of 3%. The hahility was determined usiog
the prajecied unit credit method pro-rated on service tn the date the maximum henefit is comed

KVTFD's retining employees are entitled to four weeks' regular salary for every five years of
emplayment 1o a maximum nf 26 weeks based on 1 minimum of ten years service, The employece
must be uf retiteinent age of 5§

The accrued liability 15 based on sn actuanal valuatton as at December 11, 2019, which used a
discount rute of 2.69% and un annual selary increase rute of 2.5%

KRIBPC's cetiring etnployees are entitled to accumulate the greater of fifty percent of unused sick
feave credits of une monih's standard salary fur every five years, or sny part themol, ol service to a
tnaximum of 6 months.

The accrued liability is based on an actuarial valuativn ay at July 31, 2019, which vsed o discount
raie of 2.69% and an annual salary increase rate of 3% for four years and 2% thereafter,

The consolidated unfiunded liability cangist of

2022 a2l
Rothesay S 444587 $ 446206
KVED 268,748 233,552
KRJIBIC — M6.185 331945
Baulaaee ot end of year §_1059520 $_1011 803

KVFD and KRJBPC have intemally restniced funds far their hiabilities.
Pension Obli tation

Emplayces of Rothesay, KVFD apd KRIBPC partiespate in the New Brosswick Municipal
Employces Pension Plan (NB MEPP). The NB MEFPP is 2 muluplc-employer defined benefit
pension plan edmimistered by a board elected by the members under the provisions of the
Municipalitizs Act ol New Brunswick  The NB MEPP provides pensions based on length of servics
and best average camings.

Actuarial valuations for funding purposes are performed cither annually or triennially depending on
the linancial position of the NB MEPP (currcutly annually)  In lum, the actuanal valuations for
accounting purposss are based on these figures (with adjusimentsy, The most recent actuarial
valuation was prepared as at December 31, 2020 and resulted in an overall NB MEPP acerued
benelit obligation of $335,124, 1040 based an the recounting basis.
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ROTHESAY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

16. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE {conr'd)

The actuarinl valuatron for accounting purpases was bascd on a aumber ot assumptions about future
eventy, such us mfletion rutes, inlerest rutes, wage and salary increases and employes tumover and
mortality. The assumptions used reflect management's best estimates. The folowing summarizes
the major assumptions in the valeation as at December 31, 3021:

- the expected inflation rate is 2.10% {pricr 2.10%);

« the discount rate used to determine the acorued benefit vbligalion is 5.7% (prior 5.55%);
- the expected rate of retum on assets is $.7% (prior 5.55%),

- retirement age varies by age and ernployment category; and

- estimated average remaining service life (EARSL) is 14.0 years {pricr 13.0 years),

Ihe achiarial valuation prepared as at December 31, 2020 indicated that the present value of the
accutnulated plan benefits exceeded the marker value of the net assets available Tor these benefits,
The pension plan hss been granted 8 solvency deficiency exemption by the Province of New
Beunswick. On a going concern valuation basis, the actuarial valuation indicated a plan deficic of
$833,500, a change of 5191,700 frurn the December 31, 2019 deficit of $641,8060. Based on the
assumptions as at Decainber 31, 2020, the actuary expected the level of employer and employee
contrihutions to he sufficienr to fund the deficit in kess than fifteen yvars, as allowed by the Pensiuns
Benefits Act.

As at December 31, 2024, the NB MEPP peovides lenefus for 294 retirees. Total beneRts puyments
to retirees and terminating employees during 2022 are estimated o bo approximately $4,957,200
{actual 2021, $6,360,300} in totality for the NB MEPP,

Empluyees make contributions using rates that vary by camings tevel and employment category,
with an vverall average contribution rate of approximately 8.00%. Each municipality conmbutes an
amount that equals theis employees contributions amounts. Pension fund assets are invested in short
term securities, bonds, Canadian equities and foreign equilies. Combined employees and
municipalities contmbutions for 2022 are estimated to be approximarely $7,421 400 {acual 2021,
$£7,235,200) in ¢totality far the NB MEPP.

‘The fol jowing summarizes the NB MEPP data ns it velates to Rothesay:

The average age of the 43 active ¢mployees covered by the ND MEPP is 47,6 (us at Dec 3,
2020);
- benefit paymenty were $261,900 1n 2021 and were estimiated o be $211,200 ju 2022, and
- combined contributions were $429,500 in 2021 and were estimated 10 be $441,400 in 2022,

1he following summarizes the NB MEPP dats a3 « relases to KVED:

= T'he average age of the 43 active employees covered by the NB MEPP 15 433 (2021-42.7),
- benefit payments wero $527,600 10 2021 and weee estimated to be $527,600 & 2022, and
- combined contributions were $569,400 in 2021 and were estimated to be $573,600 in 2022

The Tullowing summarizes the NH MEPP data as 1 rclates to KRIBPC;

- The avernge age of the 45 active emplnyecs cavered hy the NB MEPF is 44 5 (2021 - 44),
- benefit payments were $797,300 in 2021 und were estimated to be $513,700 in 2022, and
combined contributions were $793 800 in 2021 and were estirnuted to be S8 7,660 i 2022
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TU CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1022
16, POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFTTS PAYABLE (cont'd)

In addition tn determining the pesiion of the NB MEPP as # nclates to Rathesay end the other
contrutled entities a5 at Decerber 31, 2020 and December 31, 2021, NB MEPP's actuary performed
an extrapolation of the December 31, 202) accounting valustion to determine the estimated posutian
as ot December 31, 2022 The extrapolaticn assumes assumptions used ss ot December 31, 2022
1emain unchanged from December 3, 2021 The extrapelativn also assines assets retusn 5.71%, nel
of all fees and expenses. If experience is different than assumed, amounts will be adjusted ta reflect
actial experience. Hesults of the extrapalation m1e as follows

Estimnted
Jan 1, 2022 to Jan 1, 2021 w
Dec 31, 2022 Dec 3J, 2021
Accrued Henefit Liability

Accrued benefit liahility at begmning of period £ 71,89 § 156,767
Change in ownership percentage 30 {431,507)
Adjustment o actual 35,809 1,986
Peusion expense for the year 404,260 152,713
Empluyer contributions _1502.22() (502.0866)
Accrued benefit lability ot end of penud $ 10,152 s 71,893

In summary, the consolidated sccrued berefit hability (assot) is estimated to he $10,152 a3 ar
December 31, 2022, The Becember 11, 2021 habiliy was catimated in the prior year. ‘The actial
linbility was calculated to be $101,804 The dilfersnce of $29,914 has been reconded (o the current
year.  This amount is wctuded in the post employment benefits payable on the conselidated
statement of financaal posituen

Estimated
Jan 1, 2022 1o Joo 1, 2021 tu
Dec 31,2922 Dec 31,2021
Rothesay 3 {16,700) T {15,700}
KVED 72,937 63,150
KRIBPC ——{16.085) —22,44)
S 1032 §ILE23

The financial position as it refates to the accrued benefit Hability is shuown as felows and liustrates
the unamoriized amounts being recognized in pension eapense sver lime:

Estimatcd
Juo 1,2022 lo Jan 1,2021 to
Dec 31, 2022 Dec 31, 2621
Reconciliarion of Funded Status at Fad of Period

Accrued berofit obligation §22,224.683 $ 20,810,363
Plan assets £21,716,631) (20,166,583)
Plan deficit 508,052 643,780
Adjustment to actual - {5,904
Unamottized experience fosses —{497,900) — {336,076}
Accrued benefit liability a1 end of penod ¥ 10,152 $__lnrxod
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMDBER 31, 2022
16. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFTTS PAYABLE (cont'd)

I'he following 1llustrates the reconciliatinn of accrued bencfit obligation from the beginning of

penud to the end of period:

Reconciliation of Accrued Beaefit Obligation
Accrued bensfit ocbligacion at beginning of period
Chenge in awnership
Current service cost
Bencfits payments
Interest for period
Experience {oss during peried

Accroed tenefit obligation a1 end of period

Eatimated
Jan 1,2022 to
Dec 31, 2022

$20.810.363
17.859
836,272
(632,384}
LI99.013

$.22,224. 681

Jan1,2021 to
Dec 31, 2021

$19,995.520
(6,954)

805,636
(196,536)

1,109,658
-(296,961)

520,310,363

The following illustrates the reconciliation nf plan assets from the heginning of period to the end of

pericd:

Reconciliation of Plan Assets
Plan assets at beginning of period
Change in awnership
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benelit pavaents
Return on plan assets during pened

Plan assets at exd of period

Estimated
Jan 1, 2022 ta
Dec 31, 2022

$20,166,583
17451
502,221
502,221

{632,884)
_1.161.039

320218611

Total expense related ta pensicns inelude the following components:

Peasion Bxpense
Emplover current service cost
luterest an accrued benetit obligation
Expected return on assets
Amndtizatine of unrecognized halances
Experience loss

Pensinn expensc

The pension expense iz included in the statemient of operations.

My

Fstimated
Jdan 1, 2022 to
Dec 31, 2022

$ 34,051
1,193,033
(1.161.039)
38313

b 404,361

teed saunders
doyle

Jan 1, 2021 t»
Dec 31, 2021

5 19,398,804
(6.701)
487,277
4924
(796,536)

_ 591240
$.20.166 58

L

Actual
Jan 1,202} ¢
Dec 31,2021

$ M338

L109,658
(1.0B1,325)

26,363
$___ 67814
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ROTOESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATFMFENTS

DECEMBDER 31, 2022
CONTINGENT FIABILITY

Ly the normal course of operatinns. the I'nwn becotmes mvalved in various clams and legal
proceedings.  While e Gual vutceme with respeet to claims ond legal proceedings pending at
December 31, 2022 cannot be peedivted with certainty, it s the opinion of management and Council
that resalution of these matters will not have a material udverse effect.

COMMITMENT

Solid Waste Collectiun, Transporiation and Resyeling Seevices

The Town has a three year conact for solid waste zervices. The cuntracl expires en December 31,
2023, The minimium annual commitment for the neat vear iz §545,039.

In 2021, the Town entered into a conlrset for anow cleanng services from November 2021 to April,

2023, The minimum annual commitment fur the nexi yeer 1z $305,984.

SHORY TERM BORROWING
Openting Borrowing

As prescribed in the Local Governance Act, bomowing to finance General Operating [und
opetations is limited to 4% of the Municipality’s budge:  Bomowing to finsrce Uulity Fund
aperations is timited (o 50% ol the vperating budget for the year  In 2022, the Town has complied
with these restiictions.

Lapual bunds

At December 31, 2022, there were no short term funda (2021 §500,000) borrowed from other
fumds and no shar-teon funds (2071 - nil} burrowed from a financial institution ta provide mtetin
tunding for capital projects in the Geseral Cepital Fund.

At Deeember 3, 2022, theee was $190,000 shortterm funds {232 - nil) borrowed fram other funsds
and no short-term funds (2025 = nil) borrowed from a financin] institution 1o provide interim funding
for capital prajects in the Utiliry ¢ gpital Fund

The Town has retnaining vul tanding autharity for short feem bowowings as follows.

tieneral Capitat Fand, OIC & 72 5018 $ 1,250,080
Dtikity Capital Fund, OIC ¥ 21-006) $00.000
$_2.050,000

e et
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ROTHESAY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022
SHORT TERM BORROWING (cont'd)

Inter-fund Bormawin

The Leeal Governance Act requires that skort term inter-fund borrowings be repaid in the next year
unless the hormrowing is for a capital praject The amounts payable between Funds are i compliance
with the requirements.

Amounts outstanding at year end are inter fund regular payables or 1n somie eases, a shote tenn Joan
may cxijst from the reserve account. Where a loan is in place, interest is paid to the rescrve account
¢t a rate that equates what the account woold have camed had it heen in the bank. These {oan
amounts are paid off within the following year and Council is given a summary at year end @ be
fully infooned of these transactions.

UTILITY FUND SURPEUS

The Lical Governance Aut requizes Utility Fund surplus amouats to be absorbed into ome or more of
four Operating Budgets cotmmencing with the second neat ensuing yesr; the balince of the surplus
ar the end of the year consists of:

2022 Hiry
2022 Surplus 5 33993 $
1021 Sueplus 41,747 41,787
2020 Surplus - — 48220
7550 S__koouy
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ROTHESAY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

15, STATEMENT OF RESERVES (cont'd)

Council Resolutions regarding transfers to and from reserves:
Date Enacted Docember 12, 2022

MOVED by Deputy Mayor Alexander and seconded by Counc. Boyle that the Gias Tax Funding in
the amoun: of $83%,941.00 for the year 2022, be transfened to the General Capital Reserve Fund
{Gas Tax}).

CARRIED.

MOVED hy Deputy Mayar Alexander and scconded by Counc. Boyle that the sum of $20:.000.00
be transferred from the General Capitat Reserve Fund {(3as Tax) to the Gencral Operating Fund o
cover the costs of Capital projects

CARRIED.

MOVED by Deputy Mayor Alexander and seconded by Caunc. Boyle that the sum of $175,000.00
be tansferied from the General Operating Furd to the General Capital Reserve W cover the costs of
firture Capital projects

CARRIED,

MOVED by Deputy Mayor Alexander and seconded by Cowne MoGuire that $57,550.00 be
transferred from the Lhility Operating Fund to the (xility Capital Reserve Fund for water and
sewer connsciion fees

CARRIED.

MOVED by Deputy Mayor Alexander and seconded by Counc. Boyle thai the sum of $250,000.00
be tansferred frow the General Capital Reserve Fund (Gas Tax) to the Ulikiy Operating Fund o
cover the costs of (apital prajects

CARRIED.

MOVEI by Deputy Mayor Alexander and seconded by Couac, Boyie that the suwm of 53€0,000.00
be transferred from the Lhility Capital Reserve Fund te the Urility Operating Fund to cover 1he costs
of Capital projects

CARRIED.

MOVED by Deputy Mayar Alexander and secended by Caunc. Hayle that §5,686 001 be transferred
[roan the Ukility Operating Fund to the Utility Sewape Qutfail Reserve Fund for Rothesay 's
contribution to the Sewage Outfall Reserve,

CARRIED.

MOVED by Deputy Mayor Alexander and seconded by Courc. Doyle that 311,256.00 received
from Quispamsis for Sewage Outfall be trangferced fow the Ulility Operating Fund 10 the Utility
Sewage Cutfall Reserve Fund

CARRIED.

! herehy certify that the abave are truc and exast topics of tesotuttona adopted at the regular meehng
of Council on leceanber 12, 2022
) "! U k ;
i’l"! Ay "‘Jvi! Lo __/'H "
Town Gjer’(' f ! Date

teed saunders T
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16, STATEME

ROTHESAY

NOTES TG CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DFCEMBER 31, 2022
NT OF JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES OPERATIONS

2022
KV Fire Police Lijbhrary Total

2021
Total

ASSETS $_2920.258 $_1,622376 §_LA66.380 $_6015.003 54960647
LIABILITIES §...878598 S__ 245277 S 11302 S_LG4LU74 S _L3i86.3
ACCUMULATLD

SURPLLS §_2.050,663 §__877,099 §_1449.087 §_4375849 §_3.642.034
REVENUE $ 3016342 § 3316601 § 89758 § 6422701 § 5433,335
EXPENDITURES —24%5 00 _3.093225 18L04¢ 3721980 32183

S62,63) 203376 (91.288) 69,721 215014

CHANGE IN

OWNERSIITP 5.868 (sa1) - 5.422 L1
ANNUAL SURPLUS

(DEFICIT) S__S68.Sul 5222938 S__(U1284K)S__ 700144 S__ 25395

I'he abgve nated entittes are included in the consalidated financinl statements. The above figures do

not include the eliminating adjustments and 1epresent Rothesay's propartionate share

9

teed saunders
doyle
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ROTHESAY

DECEMBER 31, 2022

28. REVENUE AND EXPENBITURES SUPPORT

2023
Budget
REVENIIE
Salc af services
Community Centre 5 20,000
Rental revenue 116,000-
Recreationat programs PARR
HIVE programs o
§__419.900
Other own source
Perruts snd Gres - 55,000
Contributions by developers -
Developers contributions - LPP .
l.ocal improvernent levy 4,708
Miscellancous 43,233
$___K2.043
Conditiona! government transters
Government of Canada ) 33,500
Province of New Brunswick -
Gas Tax revenue 1,150,000
Canada Day grants 1.500
Crhier goverament grants
$_1, 190,000
EXPENDEIURE
General povernment services
Legisiative
Mayes £ 47000
Councilors 135,100
Fundy Regional Service Commission 6,000
Other — 12,49
—200.599
Administrative
Administation £37,000
Office hailding, i81,250
Solicitar 50,000
Supplics 30,000
Other FLERPA S
1,342,178
Financial monagemenl
Professional fees 35,000

11,

2022 2421
Actuul Actual
$ 2240 & 26818
96,411 94,696
127,246 337,713
"mz&m ——— i
$  anio § 459,024
$ 175838 § 94,132

645,068 ‘
- 4,560
4,708 4,708
42,067 9370
S__U67681 §_ 112270
$ 5728 8§ 631,774
" 1,188,580 1,193,354
1,150,000 1,02:4,000
1,680 | 600
: — s
S 2375988 8 2286208
% 41421 § 16,986
130,639 126,140
5.219 5,776
6,768 S 0.
184067  _17).740
g1 698,436
183,120 176,730
19,030 20,564
28,801 10977
Al 0¥ 51E
_L362,570  _4,045225
JLEES 263510

teed saunders
doyle |




ROTHESAY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBFR 34, 2022

28. REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUPPORT {cont'd)

20722 W22 ARl
Budget Actual Aclual
General govermment services (contd)
Other
Civic relations 1,000 6o i
Covid-19 25,000 6,697 27033
Commuonity communicetions 10,000 6,393 2738
Insurance 256,784 254,475 47058
Property sax - land for public purposes 17,622 17.824 16,782
Girants 10 organizations 36,500 28628 22,147
Fox Farm Road rental expenses 1000 10,446 5,713
Cost of assgssment 263,934 293,934 266,004
Intorest 3450 2,294 2,682
Amortization — L5000 1258359  ___127.063

173290 60 i11.503
$.2191067 % 2320503 § 2051047

Protective services

Fice
Admumstration § 28074 % 142752 3 266,992
Firetighting force 1,638,532 1,709,809 1,519,478
Telecommunications 87,144 86,895 1,600
Insurance 22,718 23.626 21,348
Prevention and training 23,444 21,746 13,372
Fucilities 77,207 75,242 71,623
Fleet 42,174 45916 13,090
Operatiens 22,423 29476 105,682
Water costs 13,692 13,692 13,243
Retirement allowance 21,683 21,683 25,112
Other 1,228 1LOGg3 7,396
(Gain} on disposal of tangible capital assets - . {6,19¢)
Amortization 135N 120,573 131023

2,464,396 2,502113 2213625

Crimestoppers 2000 4800 2800

Police
Crime Contio 2252446 2,074,445 2,030,630
Vehicls Flect 79,199 19,221 72,059
Property 938,690 106,782 88,232
Administration 477,006 509613 425,840
Retirtement allowance 33,984 34779 34,803
Communizations 110,425 119.942 113,254
Unreahzed loss (gain) on investments 41,764 41,766 (26,224)
Loss (gain) an disposal af tangible capital essets - a 39
Amortizativn — 98273 _ 98373 ____§4,659

3092030 _3us492) 2830212
teed saunders Accourant
e dvisors
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ROTHESAY

NOTES 1'0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Protective scrvices {contd)
Other
Emergency measures
Ammal comtrod
Tntesest
Other

Transportation services

Common
Wages and benefits
Workslwp, vard and equipment maintenonue
Engimeering

Roads and Stretts
Roadway surfaces
Designated highway surfacing
Storm water and traffic stslics
Crosswalks and sidewalks
Culverls and druinage ditches
Slorm sewers
Street cleaning
Snow and ice removal
Sireet lighting
Strect signs
Traffic fanc markmg
Traffic signals and signs
Roilway crossing signals
Public transit - Caniex Service
Flood costs
Intecest
Lass on disposal of 1ngible capital asscts
Amortization

28, REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUPFORT (cont™d)

2022
Hudpet

5,000
2,500
— 20000

]

§_5.686,6X5

5 1,134,000
679,111
5,000

—L.818.412

55,000

70,200
28 (0K
35,000
45,000
667,000
145,000
12,500
10,000
A0, 100
25,000
77,438
13,000
75,900

2330000
3,748,038
$_ 5,546,451

2022 2021

Actnl Actual
116 275
291 5418
l,5a02 3,993
%746 . 10978
14,394 21,166
$ 54974528 % ‘i(gﬂ’ m’?
§ 1048733 F 976,785
670,88} 599,211
— 50,957 ___ HL260
L770.571 1386219
99,985 92160

1,243,657 .
130,885 157,260
17.320 16,534
16,4632 36477
Y9, 749 344,249
50,996 40,506
684,756 520,677
148,728 161,646
12,823 9.886
33,279 25677
9,679 52,19t
19,375 22,228
78,088 4,110

(313 -

65,777 7072
136,718 183,208
_2.156.300 _4.319.749
5225863 31933330
$ 6996434 S 5520009

attountants
& advisors
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Envitonmental health services
Solid waste dispasat
Solid waste compost
Solid waste collection
Curbside recveling
Clean up campaign

Environmental development serviccs
Environmental planning and zoning
tawsian 8J
Tourism

Recreation and eultueal services
Administration
Beaches
Rothusay Arena
Mermoral Cenire
Summer programs
Rithesay Cotumon
Parks and gandens
Regional Facilities Commission
Kennebecasis Publhic Library Inc
Spevial events
HIVE programs
Playgrounds and fields
Living museum
PRO Kids
[nterest
Amartization

Water and sewer sesvices

Water Systems
Administration
Punticatinn maintenance and trestment
Source of supply - purchase of water
Trapsmission and distribution
Power aud punping
Billing and collecting

18. REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUPPORT (cont'd)

2022
Budget

$ 210,000
16,000
571,000

45000
S e 85000

$ 487,500
1921500
1,200

S 632700

e

$ 367,025
51,000
383,000
72,988
61,800
54,800
638,500
356,102

B, 189
40,000

134.000

7,500
105,800
— 600,000

$_ 2961004

$ 454,000
457,500
1,000
120,000
44000
1)

L1500

i LY

2022
Actoal

§ 213,639
31,469
682,657
3,091
11423

S_ 92281

$ 3§12
192,000

$ 568112

$ 183,924
48,766
406,862
48,356
65,551
40,034
624,734
430,147
92,198
28,492
9,794
116,581

2,02
— 191,862

$ 3183 864

§ 476,644
518,785
1,605

B6,464
45,779
3.875

LIS

teed saunders | jooee.
doyle | & dvisors

A2l
Actual

$ 202,547
44,741
570,934

—32,249
$__§54.521

$ 359,044
L4R,Q0HI

§ 507044

$ 326956
45 £95

349 694
69,359
62,780
64,17
629917
410,103
186l
14,744

136.176

7l

1,500
100368

— 740412

$_ 3036557

3 430900
408,751
i,181

14,667
39,654
.-2.4810

_1.007.563
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022

28. REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUPPORT (cont'd)

Sewer System
Administration
Sewer collection system
Sewer Lift stations
‘| rcatment and disposal
[.oss on disposal of tangsble capital azset

Interest
Anwriication

Flir¥d 2022 2021
Hudget Actual Actual
677,600 664,335 48,900
99 600 98,420 B3,047
56,000 47,573 43,351
53,500 147,611 130,494
: — B7691
925,506 954,950 93,683
253,190} 260,993 284,948
L3003 1249685 _1236,9M
L4230 _LSILGIE  Ls2].322
S LAe01%0  § 3603788 § 3,532.96%

teed saunders
doyie |

accountants
& adnsors
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F. EXCERPT - REGULATION 2018 - 54

Acts and Regulations

Enabling Act: Local Governance
NEW BRUNSWICK

REGULATION 2018-54 under the

Local Governance Act
{0.C. 2018-189}
Filed June 25, 2018

Under subsection 191{1} of the Local Governance Act, the Lieutenant-Governor in Council makes the following
Regulation:

Citation

1 This Ragulation rmay be cited as the Annuaf Report Regulation - Local Governance Act.

DEFINITIONS
2 The following definitions apply in this Regulation.

“Act" means the Local Governance Act.fLoi)

“corporation” means a corporation referred to in subsection B(1} of the Act or a corporation continued under the
Act.{personne morale}

TIME TO PREPARE ANNUAL REPORT

3(1) On or before June 30 in each year, a local government shall prepare an annual report referred to in subsection
105{1) of the Act for the preceding fiscal year.

(2} On or before June 30 in each year, a corporation shall prepare an annual report referred te in subsection 105(2) of
the Act for the preceding fiscal year.

INFORMATION INCLUDED IN AN ANNUAL REFORT UNDER SUBSECTION 105(1} OF THE ACT

&{1) An annual report under subsection 105()) of the Act prepared by a local government shall contain:

(@) the audited financial statements of the local government;

{al) the following information with respect to grants totaling $500 or more that are made under section 1013 of
the Act by a local government:

{i) the recipient of the grant, {ii) the type of the

grant,



{iin) the amount of the grant,
{iv) the terms and conditions imposed on the grant, and
() the purpose of the grant and the benefit to the local government in making the grant;

(b} the following information with respect to grants totaling $500 or more made by the local government for social

or environmental purposes:
{i) the recipient of the grant,
i} the type of grant,
(iii) the amount of the grant and whether it is a grant of money or an in-kind grant,
{iv) the terms and conditions imposed on the grant; and
) the purpose of the grant and the benefit to the local government in making the grant;

(c) the following information with respect to economic development assistance or grants totalling $500 or more

made by the local government

(i the recipient of the economic development assistance or grant,

(i) the amount of economic development assistance or grant and whether it is a grant or assistance of money

or in-kind,
(i} the terrns and conditions imposed on the economic development assistance or grant, and

{iv) the purpose of the economic development assistance or grant and the benefit to the local government in

providing the assistance or making the grant;
(d} the following infermation with respect to activities and programs relating Lo economic development:
(i) the types of activities and programs, and

(i) the purpose of the activities or programs and the benefit to the local government in providing the activities

and programs;
(e) the following information with respect to a corporation established by the local government:
(i) the name of the corparation,
(ii) the purpose of the corporation,

(iii) the manner of consolidating the corporation within the financial statements of the local government, and



(i}

(iii)

i)

{v)

(vi)

(i)

how to access the financial statements and annual reports of the corporation; {f)  the following
information with respect to the council:
the members of council and their committee and other responsibilities,

the number of regular meetings held by the council and the names of the members of council in

attendance at the meetings,

the number of special meetings held by the council, the types of matters discussed and the names of the

members of council in attendance at the meetings,

the date of the council meetings or committee of council meetings closed Lo the public and the types of

matters discussed at the meetings,

if electronic means of communication is used at a meeting of council, the names of the members of council

participating by electronic means,
the salary range and other remuneration or benefits of members of council, and

the amounts paid as allowances to the members of council for expenses resulting from the discharge of

their duties; and

{9} information with respect to the provision of services by or through the local government, including the nature of
the service provided and the cost of the services and related infrastructure, under the following headings:

0]

()

(i)

(v)

v

(¥))

{vil)

(vili}

{ix)

general governrment services,

protective services,

transportation services,

environmental health services — general fund,

environmental health services — utility fund,

environmental development services,

recreation and cultural services,

fiscal services,

public health services, and (x) other services.

4&(2) An annual report under subsection 105{1) of the Act prepared by a local government may include the following

information:



{a)

{b)

(€}

id)

2019,c5,

general information regarding the local government, including the population, tax rates, tax base and user

charges;

information on capital prajects undertaken within the year and information on multiyear capital planning;

performance measures established by the local government and the progress made with respect to those

measures, and

information respecting employee classification, salary ranges, benefits and travel expenses.

5.4

INFORMATICON INCLUDED IN AN ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SUBSECTION 105(2) OF THE ACT

5{1)An annual report under subsection 105{#) of the Act prepared by a corporation shall contain:

(a)

(b}

®

(i)

(iii)

{v)

v

the audited financial statement of the corporation;

the following information with respect to grants totaling $500 or more for social or environmental purposes

made by the corporation:

the recipient of the grant,

the type of grant,

the amount of the grant and whether it is a grant of money or an in-kind grant,

the terms and conditions imposed on the grant, and

the purpose of the grant and the benefit to the local government in making the grant;

{c} the following information with respect to economic development assistance or grants totaling $500 or more

provided by the carporation:

0]

iy

(i)

(v}

the recipient of the economic development assistance or grant,

the amount of the economic development assistance or grant and whether it is a grant or assistance of

money or in-kind,

the terms and conditions imposed on any econornic development assistance or grant provided, and

the purpose of the economic assistance or grant and the benefit to the local government in making the

grant or providing the benefit;

[d) the following information with respect to activities and programs of the corporation relating to ecanomic

development:

U]

the types of activities and programs, and
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(i} the purposes of the activities and programs or the benefit to the local government in providing the

activities and programs;
(e) the following infoermation respecting the board of directors of the corporation:
(i) the names of the members of the board of directors and their responsibilities,

(i} the number of meetings held by the board of directors and the names of the members of the beoard in

attendance at the meetings, and

i} if electronic means of communication is used at a meeting, the names of the members of the board of the

corporation participating by electronic means; and

(0 information with respect to the provision of services provided by or through the corperation, including the

nature of the services and the cost of the services and related infrastructure.

5(2} An annual report under subsection 105(2) of the Act prepared by a corporation may include the following
information:

(@) information on capital projects undertaken within the year and on multivear capital planning; and

(B} performance measures established by the corporation and the progress made with respect to those measures,

LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND CORPORATIONS SHALL COMPLY WITH REQUIREMENTS UNDER SUBSECTION 105(3} CF
THE ACT

6 Local gowvernments and corporations shall comply with the posting requirements of an annual
report and make the annual report available for examination in accordance with subsection 105(3) of

the Act.

Commencement

T This Regulation comes into force on January 1, 2019. N.B. This Regulation is consolidated to

June 14, 2019,



